
 

 

 

10 April 2024 
 
 
 
Team Leader – Key Sites Assessment 
Department of Planning, Housing & Industry  
4 Parramatta Square,  

12 Darcy Street, 

PARRAMATTA NSW 2124 

 

 

Your Ref: SSD-62802207 

 

 

Dear James, 

 

Comments on Hills Showground Precinct East 

3 Andalusian Way, Castle Hill (adjacent Hills Showground Metro Station) 

 

I write to you in response to the exhibition notice on the Major Projects Planning Portal in relation to 

a proposed development application for the Hills Showground Precinct East within the Showground 

Station Precinct.   

 

On 1 December 2024, a meeting was held with the Applicant to discuss the development proposal.  

All planning matters raised in these notes are required to be addressed as part of the development 

application.  Refer Attachment 1 for pre lodgement notes.  It is noted that the Department of Planning, 

Housing and Industry is the consent authority and will assess whether the built form proposed, 

including the maximum height is supported and that it consistent with the approved concept DA.   

 

The following technical concerns are raised in relation to the exhibited material:   

 

Open Space and Recreation 

In relation to open space, a park of 3,500m2 is proposed in the north-east of the development. Whilst 

open space is a requirement for this development and the greater Showground Precinct, there are 

currently parks located within 400m of existing and future residences, consistent with Council’s 

Recreation Strategy. These parks include: 

• Castle Hill Showground – completed Master Plan. 

• Cockayne Reserve – which is incorporated into the Cattai Creek Corridor Master Plan and 
ensuing construction works will commence shorlty. 

• Chapman Avenue Reserve – proposed for expansion and re-development as part of future 
separate planning proposals in the precinct. 

 



 

 

Depending of the level of investment proposed for the identified local park (Precinct East Park) within 

the development, an option may be to remove this park and have the capital invested into the 

Showground project. 

 

Should the local park remain, it would need to meet the levels of service outlined in the Recreation 

Strategy, noting it would be a Local – Urban Park (high density area), therefore attracting a higher 

level of embellishment. 

Whilst the local park solar plan identifies 65% of sunlight for 2 hours during the winter solstice, we 

are still concerned this is quite minimal for a site that will consist of plantings such as trees, shrubs 

and turf, and the ability to keep this vegetation thriving during this period of the year with anticipated 

high use. The grassed area appears to be in the north of the park, likely to receive the least amount 

of sunlight. 

Additionally, future developments on the south-eastern side of Carrington Road will create increased 

shadowing upon the park. This will be a similar scenario for the two other pockets of open space 

along Carrington Road between Doran Drive and Andalusian Way. 

It is to be noted that the Showground Arena is designated for upgrade under the Western Sydney 

Infrastructure Grants Program. The arena will be developed to accommodate  a variety of sports, 

festivals and cultural events. An upgrade of lighting is proposed to meet  current Australian Lighting 

Standard for this site. The lighting design includes four lighting towers located within the arena. the 

lighting levels will initially attain a level of 500Lux with the capacity to upgrade to 1500Lux. It is 

therefore suggested that the proponent considers some form of block-out screens to reduce any light 

glare on the apartment’s that directly face the arena.  

Sports, festivals, and events will also create a level of noise and as this development is in close 

proximity to the arena it could be expected that for a sports event and music festival the noise level 

could reach between 75(dBA) - 110(dBA). NSW EPA Noise Guide for Local Government (January 

2023) page 166. 

It is therefore suggested that all windows and glass doors that face the arena be triple glazed to 

reduce the impact of noise at such levels. 

Previous discussions during presentations by Landcom identified a number of items in Doran Park 

Plaza were to be removed or altered. This Plaza is a vital connecting link between the station, 

proposed development and Showground and needs to compliment the future proposal of the 

Showground. Please see attachment relating to Doran Drive Plaza comments. 

 

Landscaping 

It is recommended that further details are provided on Landscape Plans which include: 

• Retaining walls and planter boxes, with Top of Wall (TOW) heights for all retaining walls or 

planter boxes. 

• Fully detailed planting plans indicating species locations on plan and in planting schedule 

including name, size and quantities.  

• Proposed fencing heights and materials. All fencing and retaining walls along street 

frontages are to be setback to allow for planting forward. 

The development is to ensure that any planting above basement extents or on slab are in 
accordance with the THDCP Part C Section 3 – Landscaping minimum soil depth requirements 
where: 

 

• 1.2m for large trees, 1m for medium trees and 800mm for small trees; 

• 500-600mm for shrubs; 



 

 

• 300-450mm for groundcover; and  

• 200mm for turf.  
 

Note: this is the soil depth alone and not the overall depth of the planter, and that mounding to 

achieve soil depth is not supported.  

If the framework for landscaping is not approved under the Concept DA, a minimum of 50% of the 
site is to be landscaped as per THDCP Part D Section 19 – Showground Station Precinct Clause 
6.3 (1) and THDCP Part B Section 5 – Residential Flat Building Clause 3.6 (a). Please provide 
Landscape Area diagrams that clearly show areas of landscape area. Note that landscape areas 
are to have a minimum width of 2m to be included in the landscape area calculations. 

 
Ensure that fencing is integrated with landscaping with variations in the planting to provide an 

attractive street frontage. All boundary fencing/walls fronting a street are to be setback to allow for 

landscaping.  

Street Trees planting is to be in accordance with the Showground Precinct Public Domain Plan and 
Showground Precinct Verge Treatment details 

 

‘Driveways are to be screened by a minimum of two metre wide landscaping strip on either side.’ in 
accordance with THDCP Part C Section 3 – Landscaping Clause 3.12 Car Parking. 
 

Location of stormwater and fire egress paths are to be coordinated with landscape designs to 
reduce conflicts with planting.  
 

Indicate the location and detail of letterboxes, fire services such as boosters and substations, and 

integrate into landscaping. 

Acoustics 

The proposed development adjoins Showground Road which is a classified road.  The development 

is to be designed to ensure acceptable internal noise levels, based on Environmental Criteria for 

Road Traffic Noise and Australian Standard 3671 – Road Traffic Noise Intrusion – Building Siting 

and Construction.  It is expected that the development meets 35dB(A) in any bedroom between 

10pm and 7am and 40dB(A) elsewhere (other than garage, kitchen, bathroom and hallway) at 

anytime.  A statement from a qualified acoustic consultant certifying that the design and construction 

of the building meets the Environmental Protection Authority – Environmental Criteria for Road 

Traffic Noise and Australian Standard 3671 – Road Traffic Noise Intrusion – Building Siting and 

Construction is required to be submitted.  

 

Air conditioning unit locations are to be a minimum 450mm from the side/rear boundary, and is to 

comply with the SEPP (Exempt and Complying Development Codes) 2008 requirements.  

 

The development shall not give rise to offensive noise as defined under the Protection of the 

Environment Operations Act 1997.  In addition, rock breaking and noise from the construction of the 

development shall comply with the EPA Draft Construction Noise Guideline 

 

Council’s Engineering, Waterways, Traffic and Resource & Recovery Team are reviewing the 

submitted information and these comments will be forwarded to you once received.   

 

 

 



 

 

Should you have any questions, please contact me at cdugan@thehills.nsw.gov.au or 9843 0334. 

 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

Cynthia Dugan 

PRINCIPAL CO-ORDINATOR – DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENTS 

 

  

mailto:cdugan@thehills.nsw.gov.au


 

 

Attachment 1: 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 


